
UN~TED NATIONS 1812th meeting 
ECONOMIC AND SOCIAL COUNCIL Friday, 7 January 1972, 

at II a.m. Fifty-second Session 
OFFICIAL RECORDS 

President: :\Ir. Karoly SZARKA (Hungary). 

Organization ofwork 

I. The PRES I DENT said that, after consultations with 
.the newly elected Vice-Presidents of the Council, he 
wished to suggest that Mr. Fraz[fo should serve as 
Chairman of the Economic Committee, Miss Lim as 
Chairman of the Social Committee, and Mr. Scott as 
Chairman of the Co-ordination Committee. If there was 
no objection, he would take it that the Council agreed to 
that suggestion. 

It was so decided. 

AGENDA ITEM 10 

Basic pr'>gramme of work of the Council in 1972 and 
consideration of the provisional agenda for the fifty
second session (concluded) ( E I L.1469 and Corr .1, 
E/L.1474, E/L.1475; ESA/ECOSOC/LII/CRP.1) 

2. The PRESIDENT said that, without prejudice to 
any other decisions which the Council might wish to take 
on the item, he would like to suggest that the Economic 
Committet! should begin its work at the fifty-second 
session a few days after the commencement of the 
meetings on 15 May. He was making that suggestion 
because most members of the Council appeared to have 
reacted favourably to it after it had initially been made 
by the rep I esentative of Japan. If there was no objection, 
he would take it that the Council agreed to the sugges
tion. 

It was so decided. 

3. Ur. DRISS (Tunisia) asked precisely how many 
days after the reopening of the fifty-second session the 
Economic Committee would begin its work. 

4. The PRESIDENT replied that the exact timing of 
the meetings of the Economic Committee could be 
decided at the start of the meetings of the fifty-second 
sessiOn. 

5. Mr. DRISS (Tvnisia) repeated the proposal he had 
made at the previous meeting for closure of the debate on 
the provisional agenda for the fifty-second session. The 
C-:>uncil would be wasting time if it continued to discuss 
the provisionai agenda, which would in any case be 
reviewed when the session reopened. He proposed that 
the Council should approve the provisional agenda for 
the fifty-second sessiOn (see EjL.l469 and Corr.l ), 
subject to any modifications which might be made during 
the session. 

NEW YORK 

6. Mr. DENOT MEDEIROS (Brazil) recalled that 
proposals regarding the allocation of items for the fifty
second session (see E/L.1474) had also been made at the 
previous meeting. He :·:.sumed the Council would discuss 
those proposals further at the organizational meetings. 

7. Mr. CARANICAS (Greece) said that when the 
session reopened the Council would be fully entitled to 
adopt, change or reject the provisional agenda approved 
at the organizational meetings. He suggested that each 
item of the provisional agenda should be considered 
separately. 

8. Mr. DRISS (Tunisia) felt it would be useless to take 
a separate decision on each item, as the discussion would 
be repeated at the reopening of the fifty-second session. 
He withdrew all his proposals on the matter. 

9. Mr. MAHMASSANI (Lebanon) felt that decisions 
on the provisional agenda should be deferred until the 
reopening of the session. 

10. Mr. AKWEI (Ghana) said that if the Council could 
not agree on the provisional agenda at the organizational 
meetings, there was little likelihood that it could agree on 
it at the actual session. He supported the Greek represen
tative's views concerning the need for a detailed examina
tion of the provisional agenda at the present stage, which 
might facilit::~te the Council's work when the session 
reopened in May. 

II. Mr. ZAGORIN (United States of America) said he 
was prepared to approve the draft programme of work 
and the provisional agenda for the fifty-second session as 
prepared by the Secretariat (E/L.l469 and Corr.l ). 

12. Mr. LISOV (Union of Soviet Socialist Republics) 
recalled that at the previous meeting he had proposed 
that consideration of two items on the agenda of the fifty
second session, item 3 (d) and item 6 (a), should be 
deferred to the resumed fifty-third session. Agenda item 
lO (b) could be deleted from the agenda of the fifty
second session, as it was to be considered at the fifty
third session in any case. 

13. Mr. ZAGORIN (United States of America) said 
that he would oppose any proposal to defer consideration 
of agenda item 3 (d) to the resumed fifty-third session. 
The Plenipotentiary Conference to Amend the Single 
Convention on Narcotic Drugs, 1961, was scheduled to 
be held in March 1972 and there would be plenty of time 
for a report on the Conference to be issued before the 
fifty-second session proper. Regarding agenda item 6 (a), 
he felt no useful p1rpose would be served by reversing the 

17 E/SR.l812 



18 Economic and Social Council- Fifty-second Session 
~---- ·---~---···-------------~---------------------~-------- ---- ---------- ....... ·--. --~---------

earlier decision of the Council for inclusion of that item 
in the agenda of the fifty-second session. 

14. Mr. VIAUD (France) said that the Council 
appeared to be talking about two different questions, 
approval of the provisional agenda for the fifty--second 
session, and organization of work for that session. 
Regarding the first question, it Wtis imperative to ap
prove_ a provisional agenda so that Governments could 
prepare for discussion of the items approved. He was 
willing to adopt the draft programme contained in 
document E/L.l469 and Corr.l, which might be 
modified by the Secretariat on the basis of new 
developments. For instance, the report on housing, 
building and planning under item 2 might be considen.;'d 
at the fifty-fourth session and agenda item 5 (b) might be 
considered Jt the fifty-third session. Agenda item 3 (d) 
specifically mentioned "possible" follow-up action. The 
Council at its fifty-second session might decide to 
postpone the item unti: a later time, particularly if 
follow-up action ,. !_:s uot possible, for one reason or 
another. 

15. No decision could be taken on organization of work 
three months in advance. The organization of work was 
in any case dependent on adoption of the definitive 
agenda. He therefore suggested that the Council should 
"take note" rather than "approve" the organization of 
work outlined in document EjL.l474. 

16. Mr. CARANICAS (Greece) agreed with the 
representative of France regarding the action to be 
taken on the provisional agenda. With reference to the 
organization of work, it was helpful for delegations to 
know in advance whether committees such as the 
Economic Committee would meet, and what specific 
agenda items would be allocated to each. That would 
facilitate the discussion and adoption of the agenda at the 
beginning of the fifty-second session. He was prepared to 
accept the draft programme (E/L.1469 and Corr.1) but 
the question of the organization of work (E/L.1474) 
needed to be darified somewhat. 

17. Mr. SCOTT (New Zealand) said he was ready to 
accept the programme of work contained in document 
ESA/ECOSOCjLIIjCRP.l, with no further changes. 
Regarding the allocation of items, he agreed with the 
French and Lebanese representatives that the question 
should be postponed until the beginning of the fifty
second session. At that time the Council would have a 
clearer idea of the scope of the work to be done on each 
item and on the reports which would be submitted by the 
bodies meeting before the opening of the session. 

18. Mr. MAHMASSANI (Lebanon) said that >e 
shared the view of the representative of New Zealand. Le 
agreed with the representative of France that the Council 
should take note of the provisional agenda, which could 
subsequently be modified at the beginning of the fifty
second session. 

19. M1. HEMANS (United Kingdom) said that his 
delegation approved the basic programme of work of the 
Council in 1972 contained in document 
ESA/ECOSOC/LII/CRP.l, but thought that the 

provisional agenda for the fifty-second session was 
greatly overloaded. He wished to reserve the right to 
propose the postponement of consideration of certain 
items when the fifty-second session began. 

The basic programme of work of the Council in 1972, 
as revised by the Secretariat in document 
ESA/ECOSOCJLII/CRP.I, was adopted. 

20. The PRES I DENT suggested that the Council 
should approve the provisional agenda for the fifty
second session. 

It was so decided. 

21. Mr. CARAN I CAS (Greece) said that if the 
members of the Council merely took note of the 
organization of work of the fifty-second session outlined 
in document E/L.1474, as suggested by the represen
tative of France, they would only be postponing di·f
ficulties until the session began. If the Council was not 
going to discuss the organization of work now, the 
Secretariat should not have been requested to produce a 
paper on the matter. 

22. The PRESIDENT pointed out that document 
E/L.1474 outlined a "tentative arrangement of business 
for the fifty-second session" and should be taken in that 
spirit. 

23. Mr. ZAGORIN (United States of America) ex·
pressed agreement with the suggestion made by the 
representative of France. If the members of the Council 
could not come to some agreement now, it would be a 
waste of time for them to continue the discussion, since 
the situation would probably change and they would 
undoubtedly have a better understanding of what was 
needed at the beginning of the fifty-second session. He 
therefore thought that the Council should merely take 
note of the organization of work of the session and deal 
with it more definitively when the session opened. 

24. Mr. DRISS (Tunisia) reserved the right to revert to 
the decision to convene the Economic Committee at the 
reorening of the fifty-second session, since he considered 
it premature. 

25. Mr. DENOT MEDEIROS (Brazil) said that he 
agreed with the representative of the United States. He 
proposed that the Council should take note of the 
tentative organization of work of the fifty-second session 
proposed by the Secretary-General (E/L.I474, para. 5) 
and of the various proposals put forward during the 
organizational meetings in the light of the Council's 
decision to convene the Economic Committee a few days 
after the reopening of the fifty-second session in May. 

26. Mr. CARANICAS (Greece), noting that all 
decisions taken at the organizational meetings were 
provisional, said that his delegation would join with that 
of Tunisia in an attempt to prevent the convening of the 
Economic Committee at the beginning of the fifty-second 
session. With regard to the organization of work, he 
would prefer to have more meetings of the plenary to 



l812th meeting-7 January 1972 19 

examme some of the items referred to the Economic 
Committee. 

27. Mr. ILONIEMI (Finland) said that a firm decision 
should be taken as to when agenda items were to be 
discussed, since many of the smaller delegations, in
cluding his own, had a limited number of experts they 
could assign to meetings. 

28. Mr. ZAGORIN (United States of America) sup
ported the Brazilian representative's proposal. If the 
representative of Greece had misgivings, he should be 
reassured by the fact that the Council could reverse at the 
reopening of the fifty-second session any decisions taken 
during the organizational meeting;;, One thing that could 
not be altered, however, was paragraph 4 of Economic 
and Social Council resolution I 62 I A (Ll). Although the 
plenary had been able to deal with economic matters in 
the past, there were now 27 additional members of the 
Council and the decision to convene the Economic 
Committee at the fifty-second session was therefore a 
wise one. 

29. Mr. ODERO-JOWI (Kenya) shared the views 
expressed by the representative of Finland and asked 
what the purpose of the organizational meetings was if all 
the decisions taken were provisional. 

30. Mr. MAHMASSANI (Lebanon) asked the Presi
dent to make a ruling on the decision to convene the 
Economic Committee at the fifty-second session. 

31. Mr. AKWEI (Ghana) pointed out that, since a 
decision had already been taken on the convening of the 
Economic Committee, many speakers had been out of 
order in discussing the positions that their delegations 
wnuld take in the future. His delegation agreed with that 
decision and with the proposal made by the represen
tative of Brazil. The debate on the convening of the 
Economic Committee should be closed and the Council 
should respect the decision taken, subject to the proposal 
made by the representative of Brazil, which made 
allowance!, for future changes. 

32. The PRESIDENT said that a decison had been 
taken, but that did not prevent representatives from 
expressing their opposing views, a!.hough they could do 
so again at the fifty-second session. 

33. Mr. VIA UD (France) agreed with the represen
tative of Ghana. He also shared the view of the Finnish 
representative that the Council should know what was to 
be discussed at the fifty-second sessior. His delegation 
was not opposed to the decision to convt:1le the Economic 
Committee at the fifty-second session, but recognized 
that it might put considerable pressure upon the small 
delegations. The decision should therefore not be 
regarded as creating a precedent. His delegation agreed 
with the proposal made by the representative of Brazil. 

34. Mr. HEMANS (Urlited Kingdom), formally 
proposed the closure of the debate on the organization of 
work of the fifty-second session, in view of the substantial 
measure of agreement on the proposal made by the 
representative of Brazil. 

It was so decided. 

The proposal made by the representative of Bra:il 
concerning the organization of work (~l the jijiy-second 
session was adopted. 

35. Mr. AN (China) said that his delegation agreed in 
principle to the basic programme of work of the Council 
for 1972. However, since he did not as yet have a clear 
understanding of the work of the Council or the 
background involved in decisions on its agenda, he would 
study the agenda and state his delegations's position later 
in the fifty-second session. 

AGENDA ITEM 4 

Appointment of members of the advisory committee on the 
application of science and technology to development 
(E/5088 and Add.l-2) 

36. The PRES I DENT drew attention to the note by the 
Secretary-General (E/5088 and Add. I and 2) which 
contained the names of 22 individual experts nominated 
by the Secretary-General for appointment to the Adviso
ry Committee on the Application of Science and 
Technology to Development. It would be noted from 
paragraph 5 of document E/5088 that the Secretary
General intended to nominate t:.xperts from Chile, China, 
India and Spain for appointment, in their personal 
c;1pacities, as members of the Advisory Committee after 
the necessary consultations had been completed. The 
Secretary-General had concluded his consultations con
cerning the experts from Chile and Spain, whose names 
would be found in documents E/5088/ Add.! and 
E/5088/ Add.2 respectively. 

37. Since the A.dvisory Committee was due to meet 
early in April, the Secretary-General wished to suggest 
that he should be authorized to appoint the 1~emaining 
two individual experts as members on an interim basis 
and to present their names to the Council at the earliest 
opportunity. That practice had, in fact, been followed in 
the past with regard to appointments to bo~h the Advisory 
Committee on the Application of Science and 
Technology to Development and the Committee for 
Development Planning. 

38. Mr. MAHMASSANI (Lebanon) said that his 
delegation was surprised to see included in the list 
contained in document E/5088 a nominee from a country 
whose ·'Government had violated the Charter of the 
United Nations by committing acts of aggression against 
Arab States. He was referring to Mr. Alexander Keynan 
of Israel. His delegation strongly opposed the nomina
tion of Mr. Keynan and hooed that the actions of the 
Governments concerned would be taken into. account 
when the critl.!ria for inclusion in the list of nominees were 
established. 

39. Mr. AN (China) whole-heartedly supported the 
obst:!rvations made hy the Lebanese representative. Con
sideration should have been given to the fact that the 
i~ominee concerned came from a country which had 
committed aggression against Arab nations. 



20 Economic and Social Council-- Fifty-second Session 

40. His delegation wished ll) thank the CourH.:il and the 
Secretariat for the confidence which they had displayed 
in it by asking it to nominate an expert for appointment 
to the Advisory Committee. lhmevcr, since its C\

pericnce in questhms rdating tl) the Council \\as 
somewhat limited, it was unable lll resplllld t{) the 
invitatilHl at the present time. It \\Ould give a !'inn ans\\er 
nnce apprnpriate consultations had been held. 

41. Mr. DRISS (Tunisia) associated his delegation 
with the observations made by that of lcbarwn concern
ing the nomination of Mr. Key nan. His delegatil)n's 
position on the question was based on purely political 
considerations and was not prompted by racial dis
criminati1.1n. 

42. Mr. LISOV (llnion of Soviet Socialist Republks) 
said that the list of rwminecs dra\\ n up by the Secretariat 
\vas arbitrary and inadmissible in that it ClHlstituted a 
violation of the rights of the socialist countries of Eastern 
Fuwpe: whereas in the past 1\ntr e\(K'rts rwm l·astern 
European ClHintries had been llH!lllbers or the AdvisM} 
ClHnn ·tee. lHll} three :-.uch e\perts wen: included in the 
list rW\\ submitted by the Secretarj-Cieneral. The 
Sccn.:tariat should exercise greater care in selecting 
candidates fnr membership of bodies composed of 
governmental e\perts, such us the :\dvisl)ry Committee. 
His delegation therefore reserved the right to raise the 
question of the proper compositilm of the Advisor} 
Cummittce at the fiftj-second sessillll or the Council\\ ith 
a view to restoring the lawful rights or the socialist 
countries t)f Eastl!rn Furope. 

43. The PR FSI DFNT said that, if there was lW 

objection, he would take it that the Council, while taking 
note of the rescrvatitHls and l)bservations expressed by 
smne members. wished to uppoint as members of the 
Advisory Committct. on the Application of Science and 
Technologj to Devclopmcn~. for a pt.!riod of thre1.' years 
beginning on I January 1972, the 22 nominees proposed 
by the Secretary-General (E/ 50HX and Add.! and 2), and 
authori1ed the Secretary-G~ner;.d to appoint the 
remaining two members on an interim basis. 

It ·as so del'idecl. 

AGENDA ITEM 5 
Appointment of members of the Committee for Develop

ment Planniug ( E/5087) 

44. The PRESIDENT drev. attention to the note by the 
Secretary-General (Ej50H7) which containl!d the names 
of 22 individual experts nominatl.!d by the Sc~n:tary
Gcnerul for appointm<!nt to tht! Committee for Develop
!11ent Planning. 

45. Mr. DE SEYN LS ( Under-Secretary~General for 
Economic and Sudal Affairs) annour11.:ed that the 
SccretaryMG~·neral had that morning n.:ceived the name 
of a nmninec- V. M. Kirichenko, Deputy Director or 
Sdentil'ie and Economic Resl,!arch of GOSPLAN -
1'rom the Union ot' Soviet Socialist Republics. His name 
should therefore be added to the list of nominees 
contained in doeument E/50X7. 

46. l\1r. AN tChina) said that his delegation's position 
with regard to the appointment of a ( 'hinese C\pert to the 
Committee for Devdopment Planning \\as th~.: same as 
that which it had e\pressed in ClHlne\ion \\ ith the 
preeeding itl'm. 

.fl. I'he PRFSIDl,.NT noted that, in accordanL·e \\ith 
paragraph J nl' document l:j50~7. the Secretarj-(ieneral 
intended to lllltninate an l!\pcrt from China t'M appoint
m~.:nt. in a personal capadty, as a member l)r thL' 
(\mnnittee for Development Planning after the 
necessary consultathms had been cnmpkted. Since the 
(\)mmittee \\as due tl) meet in April. the Secrctary
(ieneral wished to suggest that he should be autlwri1cd to 
appoint that e\pert as a member on an interim basis and 
to present his name to the Council at the earliest 
opportunity. 

4~. II' there was no objcctil)ll, he \Hntld t<lk.e it that the 
Council wished to appoint as members l)r the Committee 
for DevelopnH:nt Planning, for a peril)d nl' three y cars, 
beginning on I .lantwr) 1972, the 22 rwminees prllposed 
by the Secretary-General as well as Mr. 1\.irichenk.o, 
whose nomination had been announced at the curn:nt 
meeting, and to authori1e tht! Se~:retary-(ieneral to 
appt)int the remaining mcmber on an interim basis. 

It was su dedded. 

AGENDA ITE\18 
Confirmation of members of functional commissions of 

the Council ( E/5078 and Add.l-4) 

49. The PRESIDFNT drl.'w attention to the note by the 
Sccretar:v-General (F/507X and Add.l-4) containing thc..: 
names of the representatives which the Council was 
asked to CtHlfirm. 

50. Mr. M:\HMASSANl (Lebanon) anrwunecd that 
Mr. El-Zein whose name was included jn the list ol' 
members of the Commission on lluman Rights in 
document Ef507X, would no longer be the l.cbanese 
representative in the Commission. His dclegatwn would 
communicate the name or the new Lebanc:-.e rcpn:scn
tath·c to the Secretariat as soon as possible. 

51. Mr. li FMA NS (United Kingdom) amwunced that 
Mr. Fairn would no llHlger be the llnitl!d Kingdom 
representativ\! in the Commission I'M Social Develop
ment. His dclegatinn would communicate the name of 
the new representative to the Secretariat as soon as 
possible. 

52. Mr. AHMED (Secretary of the Council) pointed 
out that. sinec the ( 'oundl was required to con firm 
members ol' th~ functional cnmmissions in their in
dividual c:~padtics, it would lw t.:alled on to confirm the 
l.cban~..::•c and United Kingdom representatives at a later 
stage. 

53. The PRI:SI DI:NT said that, if there \\as no 
objection, he would take it that the Council confirmed 
the representatives listed in documents Ef507X and 
Add.l-4. 

It was so dedded. 



1812th meeting- 7 January 1972 21 

AGENDA ITE!\1 7 

Elections 

54. Mr. IIFMANS (United Kingdom) noted that it 
had pnwcl1 difficult to rind Member States willing to 
s~:rvc on the Council's Committee on Non-Cion:rnml..!ntal 
Organinttions. In that connexion. the Council might wish 
to recall that in resolution 1580 (L) of20 Mav 1971 it had 
n:quested the Committee on Non-Gl;Vernmental 
Organinttions to I.!Xamine the contributions to develop
ment already made or being planned by non
gtlvernmental t)rgani~:ations 111 consultative status active 
primari.I~· in the l'icld of economic and soda! development. 
It had lurther requested the Committee to submit to it at 
its fifty-fourth session recommendations on improving 
non-glwernmcntal organinttions' contribution towards 
the implementation of the lntcrPational Development 
Strategy. 

"'" The item relating tl) resolution 15~0 (L) was 
perhaps the llh)St important on the Committee's 
provisional agenda and the resolutitH1 might well be the 
most impMtant resolution relating '"to the non
governmental organi1ations since tlw United Nations 
had established consultative status. The Committee 
might wish to usc the l)ppMtunity afforded by resolution 
15HO (L) tt) determine v.hy a truly meaningful and 
pwductivc relationship had not been developed between 
the Coundl and the non~governmental org.anitations. 

Major non-gtwernmental organitations had long made it 
plain that they found the relationship as difficult and, at 
times, unrewarding as the Coundl did. 

56. There were several good reasons why a productive 
relationship was partk·ularly desirable at the present 
time. First. Article 71 of the Charter entrusted to the 
<. ouncil the responsibility of making suitable 
arrangements for ctmsultation with non-governmental 
organinttions. Secondly, both the Council and the 
General Assembly had recogni1ed the fact that the 
mobili1ation of public opinion and the creation of 
political \viii in favt)Ur of the International Development 
Strategy \Vas a prime requisite for accomplishing the 
goals of the Second United Nations Development 
Decade, and the Council had recognited the non
governmental organi1.ations as a means of creating that 
political will. Thirdly. the latest figures of the Organisa
tion for Economic (\)-operation and Development, 
indicated that $840 million was tranferred annuallv from 
devclopt•d to developing countries through. non
governmental organinltions. Those reasons should suf
l'ice to remind the Council of the impnrtance of the work 
of the Committel~. His delegation therefore urged those 
dclcgatitH1S which had considered applying for 
membership in the Committee to take them into account 
in order that there might be a complete list of candidates. 

11ze meeting rose at 12.40 p.m. 




